
 

 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

September 23, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2  
 

 

.. 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

September 23, 2015 
Closed Session 6:30 PM  ·  Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM 

 
1) CONVENE CLOSED SESSION_______________________________________________________________ 
 
1A. Call to Order 
1B. Roll Call 
1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 
1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Conference with Labor Negotiators pursuant To Government Code Section 54957.6 Employee 
Organization: General Employees and Bargaining Unit Represented by Operating Engineers, Local 39 
City's Designated Representative:  Mark Miller 
 

2) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________ 
 
2A. Pledge of Allegiance 
2B. Roll Call 
2C. Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change 
to the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 

3) PRESENTATION  AND APPROVAL__________________________________________________________ 
 
3A. Winterfest Special Event – Adding Fireworks   

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 38-2015 Approving a Change to the program for the 2015 
Winterfest Event to include a Fireworks Display. 
 

4) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one 
blanket motion with a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request 
specific items to be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed 
will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
 
4A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of September 9, 2015 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 9, 2015. 
4B. Cash Summary Report August 2015 

Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

September 23, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2  
 

5) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and 
issues discussed at committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be 
made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or 
other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 
 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 
5B. City Operations Update – City staff 
5C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 
6) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the 
subject jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as 
possible. Comments should not exceed three (3) minutes in length. The Council cannot act on items not included 
on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 
 

7) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
7A. Update on Potential Skateboard Park 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Sergeant Ty Conners, Placer County Sheriff’s Colfax Station Commander 
RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss and Direct Staff as Appropriate 

7B. Update on Ad Hoc Committee Reviewing the Impact Fee Program and General Plan Circulation 
Element 
STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the project revising the Circulation Element of the General 
Plan and the Mitigation Fee Program. 

7C.  Mobile 311 – Software for Tracking Work Orders/Public Works Projects 
 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 39-2015 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 
with Mobile 311 for a GIS Work Order and Asset Management system for a twenty-one month term. 

 
8) ADJOURNMENT________________________________________________________________________ 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 
at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 



 

 

 

 

Saturday, December 12 

6pm ð 9pm 

Downtown Colfax 
 

Join us for an evening full of 

family-fun and FIREWORKS!  

Event includes – Street Vendors, Tree 

Lighting, Parade of Lights, Caroling, 

Holiday Shopping, Santa and a 

fireworks spectacular! 

 

 

 

The City & Chamber of Colfax 
Present 

Winter Fest of Lights! 

Help support our fundraising efforts by donating at the 
following locations: Mar-Val Grocery Store, Colfax Market, 
Café Luna, The Chamber, Le Orange Salon! 
 

   

 

ITEM 3A
1 of 2



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

2ÅÓÏÌÕÔÉÏÎ Ο 38-2015 
 

APPROVING A CHANGE TO THE PROGRAM FOR THE 2015 
WINTERFEST EVENT TO INCLUDE A FIREWORKS DISPLAY  

 
Whereas, the City Of Colfax is supportive of the annual December event called 

Winterfest; and 
 

Whereas, the event coordinators have requested adding a fireworks display as 
part of the celebration; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Colfax is supportive of allowing the 

coordinators to host a fireworks display provided that appropriate safety 
precautions are followed and a completed application which includes appropriate 
insurance coverage is filed with the City in a timely manner, 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax  
that the event coordinators of the Winterfest Celebration are authorized to  include 
a fireworks display in their program of events. 
 

Passed and Adopted this 23th day of September, 2015, by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:      
Noes:  
Abstain: 
Absent:   
   
 

                                                                
___________________________________ 

      Kim A Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 3A
2 of 2





City of Colfax 2 

City Council Minutes September 9, 2015 

 

City Attorney Cabral concurred that there normally isn’t monetary gain and the JPA 

becomes a separate entity which creates no financial obligation to the City or County. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham agreed to serve on the board of the new JPA and 

Councilmember Harvey will serve as the alternate. 

Placer County Treasurer-Tax Collector, Jenine Windeshausen, stated that in the process 

of setting up the JPA there would be a few extra meetings, possibly via teleconference.  

After the JPA is established, the meetings would be held quarterly.  All meetings will 

follow the requirements of the Brown Act. 

Mayor Douglass thanked Ms. Windeshausen for coming back to speak with Council. 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 

City Council approved Resolution 35-2015 authorizing participation of the City of 

Colfax in the Joint Powers Authority, Sierra Valley Energy Authority, and 

designating a City Council Representative and Alternate. 

AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT: Delfino 
 

4 COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS 
4A. Committee Reports and Informational Items ï All Council Members  

Councilmember Hesch 

 Noted that the photography displayed in Council Chambers was created by local 

artist Steve Chandler.  Other pieces of his work will be displayed during Railroad 

Days at the Depot and the Sierra Vista Community Center (SVCC). 

 Councilmember Hesch has been working steadily on the Caboose rehabilitation 

which will be ready for Railroad Days but not completely finished. 

 He has received much positive feedback regarding the Railroad Crossing Project.   

 Commented that the Garden Club has done a wonderful job with the garden plots 

and the plantings near the caboose. 

 Stated that the steel structure for Dollar General is going up today.  The outside 

should be completed quickly 

 Mentioned that Foxey McCleary and her team are painting the logo in the street for 

Railroad Days.  She would appreciate donations to defer her costs.  Donations can 

be given to Councilmember Hesch or directly to Foxey. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham 

 Attended a Mosquito Abatement meeting 

 Mentioned that Councilmember Delfino had created a plaque for former 

Community Services Director Armstrong.  Mr. Armstrong was appreciative when 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham delivered it to him. 

 Mayor Pro Tem Parnham thanked Foxey and Members of the Colfax Garden Club 

for their many hours of labor to beautify the downtown area. 

 Mentioned that the Chief Plant Operator recruitment is now being advertised. 

 Commented that he would like to see the Operator’s In Training (OITs) have more 

hours at the Wastewater Treatment Plant so they could get their certifications. 

 

 

 

2 of 7





City of Colfax 4 

City Council Minutes September 9, 2015 

 

 

 Staff is considering purchasing a software program that will track work order 

requests from the public.  It will shorten response time and help City staff give 

better service while enabling tracking of projects.  Staff will bring a proposal to 

Council at the next meeting. 

 At a future Council Meeting, staff will bring two items for discussion: a shade 

structure for the playground and the proposed skateboard park.  Quotes for the 

shade structure were about $18,000.  Staff would like to go for a competitive bid to 

receive more cost effective proposals.  There has been a resurgence of interest in a 

skateboard park and Sergeant Conners will be bringing a presentation about a less 

impactful and less costly design. 

 The next meeting (September 23, 2015) will include a closed session for 

discussion of the contract negotiations with the Local 39 Union.  Staff does not 

anticipate a confrontational process but needs Council input for talks with the 

Union.   

 The October 14 meeting may be cancelled.  In November, the regular meetings fall 

on Holidays, so staff is suggesting that Council move the November meeting to 

November 18, 2015.  

Councilmember Hesch requested an update on the Grass Valley Street UPPR Ped Xing 

Project. 

 City Manager Miller stated that there were some change orders on the project but 

that they were within the contingency funds.  There was an asphalt overrun that 

came in quite a bit higher than the engineer’s estimate.  Staff will bring the “Notice 

of Completion” to Council at a future meeting. 

4C. Additional Reports ï Agency Partners 

Chris Nave, Public Information Officer for Gold Run California Highway Patrol (CHP) 

 The Car Seat event had very minimal turnout. 

 The Labor Day holiday was relatively mild for our area. There were numerous 

highway violence calls, but most turned out not to be eventful. 

 The Street Vibrations event in Reno will begin September 23
rd

 and CHP will have 

safety information booths at the rest areas. 

 CHP will participate in the Colfax High School First Responders event next 

weekend with a “fly-by” before the football game. 

Frank Klein, Colfax Chamber of Commerce President 

 He thanked the Colfax Garden Club and the Lioness’ as well as Councilmember 

Hesch for their hard work.  Downtown is looking good! 

 The next mixer will be on October 20
th

 at L’Orange. 

 The Chamber will hold elections in December.  Anyone interested in sitting on the 

board should let him know. 

 Winterfest will be December 12
th

.  Kelly Molloy and Gary Howard are co-chairing 

the event.  They are hoping to have a fireworks display. 

 

 

 

 
 

4 of 7



City of Colfax 5 

City Council Minutes September 9, 2015 

 

5    PUBLIC COMMENT 
Sharon Conners, local resident 

 Requested that the City either tidy the arrangement of the lights on the Arbor Park 

tree or not have lights on it at all. 

Jeff Bordelon, Attorney for Local Property owners 

 Requested that Council place a review of the Berry/Eckard property on the next 

agenda. 
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

6A. Administrative Policies and Procedures Updates 

 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Adopt Resolution 36-2015 Adopting the City of 

Colfax Travel Policy, Use of City Vehicles Policy, and Technology Policy. 

City Manager Miller explained that in response to the Grand Jury inquiry into policies of 

local jurisdictions, Staff has three policies for Council to approve.   

Councilmember Harvey stated that the Travel Policy encourages use of a City Vehicle for 

travel.  Although that may be a good policy for staff; when Council travels, the use of a 

City vehicle would impede City operations.  He also asked if the new policy would 

preclude him from continuing to write-off mileage expenses from his taxes rather than 

taking a reimbursement. 

City Manager Miller agreed that the policy could be changed to remove any obligation 

for Council to use City vehicles for travel. 

City Attorney Cabral stated that Councilmembers could still use mileage as a write-off in 

lieu of a reimbursement. 

Councilmember Hesch stated that the 100 mile rule for overnight stay would preclude 

staff or Councilmembers from staying overnight at a conference or meeting in 

Sacramento.  He recommended that “at the discretion of the City Manager” be added to 

the statement.  

There was no public comment. 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, 

the City Council approved Resolution 36-2015 Adopting the City of Colfax Travel 

Policy, Use of City Vehicles Policy, and Technology Policy with the changes 

suggested. 

AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT: Delfino 
 

6B. Animal Control Services Contract Update 

 STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve and Adopt Resolution 37-2015:  Authorizing 

the City Manager to execute an update to the agreement with Placer County 

Department of Health and Human Services for Animal Control and Care Services 

and continue to explore cost control measures. 

City Manager Miller explained that staff is bringing back to Council a contract for 

Animal Control services.  After Council approved the contract at a previous meeting, the 

County returned the contract with an added clause warning of possible increases in the 

next contract and shortening the term to one year.  Although displeased with the 

5 of 7





City of Colfax 7 

City Council Minutes September 9, 2015 

 

City Manager Miller noted that Caltrans might be willing to fund improvements at that 

location. 

Councilmember Harvey inquired if the Air Pollution Control Board would weigh-in on 

this. 

City Manager Miller stated that if there is an issue, the mitigation impact fee could be 

adjusted.   

City Attorney Cabral stated that there would be no issue from the Air Pollution Control 

Board.  

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham stated that he is not in favor of having a traffic light anywhere 

in town as it would take away the charm of our little town. 

Councilmember Hesch stated that he is looking forward to moving quickly with making 

decisions, but his preference is a roundabout over a signal light. 

Mr. Bordelon stated that his clients had first applied to develop the Maidu Village project 

in March of 2013, had spent $14,000 on a traffic study and been to Council numerous 

times without an approved egress for the development.  He requested that Council make a 

commitment to determine the feasibility of a roundabout.  This has been a mess from the 

property owners’ point of view – they just want results.   

Councilmember Harvey asked if Caltrans would approve a roundabout.  

Mr. Bordelon asserted that they had said it was technically feasible, and then decided it 

wasn’t. 

City Manager Miller stated that some in Caltrans prefer the roundabout and some do not. 

Mr. Bordelon stated that the landowners have an $8,000 credit with the City and would 

be willing to decrease the credit if it were applied to hire an Engineer and quickly 

determine what would be approved for the intersection at his clients’ property.  The 

Committee will meet soon. 

 

Mayor Douglass adjourned the meeting at 8:06PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 23
th

 day of September 2015. 

 

 

7 of 7





















10 of 10



LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box





2 

 

Level of Service (LOS) Background: 

Using Levels of Service (LOS) has historically been the primary standard to measure traffic impacts. It is a 
method that measures car traffic congestion and relies on decreasing wait time and increasing traffic flow 
as the metric to determine impacts and mitigation. In the past, if a proposed project reduces the level of 
service – it was deemed to be a strong negative and often results in requirements and mitigation that could 
render the project financially infeasible despite other benefits that the new project would bring. 
Furthermore, attempting to maintain an LOS of “C” on a scale of “A” (free flowing traffic, no interruptions) 
to “F” (traffic is stop and go, delays at intersections greater than 60 seconds) does not allow for any 
recognition of transportation benefits that a project may bring to the community such as bike lanes or 
pedestrian walkways to encourage alternate methods of transportation.  It also does not consider 
economic or job creation benefits of a project.  It is simply a black and white metric – maintain LOS C or 
better: Good; dip below LOS C: Not so Good.  This outdated metric also does not take into consideration 
the high and continually escalating costs of traffic infrastructure.  While it may be desirable to have free-
flowing traffic during peak travel hours of the day, it may not make economic sense to design and size road 
capacity to minimize congestion while having excess capacity being underutilized most hours in a day.  For 
example, a standard of some congestion during the morning and afternoon peak work week hours might 
still allow 158 out of 168 hours in a week, or 94% of the time, with free flowing traffic.  Funding of right-size 
infrastructure is particularly important for small cities such as Colfax. 

The General Plan Circulation Element 

Amending policy of the Circulation Element will allow the City to be in charge of decisions related to traffic 
analysis and acceptable levels of impact instead of being held to the rigid controls of using LOS to 
determine significant impacts.  With the passage of Senate Bill SB 743 – a new metric of VMT, Vehicle Miles 
Traveled, has been introduced to replace LOS. Using VMT as the significance threshold has project viability 
and environmental benefits, such as reducing the mitigation burden on infill projects, reducing roadway 
expansion as a preferred mitigation, and encourages projects to reduce VMT through redesign.   

While it will still be appropriate to use LOS to determine traffic mitigation – it will not be recommended to 
be used to determine the level of significance through the CEQA process. Reviewing and revising the 
General Plan policies to identify VMT as the metric to measure traffic impacts will allow Colfax to better 
determine the direct impact of traffic imposed on the community and to define the appropriate mitigation. 

Traffic Mitigation Fee Program Study 

The second part of this project is to review and update the City’s Traffic Mitigation Fee Program (which is 
also based on using the LOS C as the standard for determining impacts and financing improvements). Traffic 
mitigation funds are used for capital expenditures, including engineering and design costs, environmental 
documentation, right-of-way acquisition, construction, construction management and administrative costs. 
Fees are calculated based on the impacts created by a proposed project and as such would need to be 
consistent with the General Plan policy that defines the level of impact.  Council has budgeted some 
funding for this study. 

 Enclosure: Current General Plan Circulation Element 

 

ITEM 7B





3.0 Circulation Element 

3.1 Authority and Purpose 

The purpose of the Circulation Element of a General Plan is to identify the location and the extent 
of major thoroughfares, transportation routes, terminals, and other public utilities and facilities, 
all correlated with the Land Use Element (Government Code 65302[b D. The State of California 
General Plan Guidelines lists the following mandatory issues which are to be addressed in this 
Element: 

• Major thoroughfares 
• Transportation routes 
• Terminals 
• Other local public utilities and facilities 

In addition to the mandatory issues, the optional topic areas, as well as important local issues 
covered in this Element are as follows: 

• Streets and highways 
• Public transit (e.g., buses, taxi, railroads, etc.) 
• Bicycle and pedestrian routes 
• Parking 
• Railroads 

The goals, policies, and programs of this element relating to the above issues are designed to 
maintain and improve circulation within the community. 

Transportation is also a regional issue. This element is required by Government Code Sections 
651039(t) and 65080 not to be in conflict with applicable state and regional transportation plans 
(General. Plan Guidelines). 

The accessibility of a place has a major impact upon land value and the intensity of land use. The 
location of a place in relation to the circulation network is important in determining its land use 
(LU). As an e:mmple, land located next to major highway and freeway interchanges tend to have 
commercial and/or industrial uses. Good transportation access is required to move a large 
amount of goods or to meet the needs of residents, shoppers, and recreators. Movement or a trip 
along a circulation network requires some sort of cost in either travel time and/or money. 
Generally, people place more importance on travel time and do not want to be very far from 
places they regularly visit. Land use and the distance someone has to travel to shop, work, and 
or reside are related to circulation (Hanson). The shorter this distance to shop, work, and back 
to place of residence reduces travel time, fuel consumption, congestion, air pollution, and noise. 
Mixed land uses tend to help in reducing vehicle miles traveled (VMT). 

The existing, as well as future circulation needs are based on community concerns and the goals, 
policies, and programs of the Land Use Element. Future projections are based on the anticipated 
use of vacant land in the Land Use Element (LU). 

City of Colfax 3·1 General Plan 2020 

ITEM 7B
4 of 16





Figure 3-1 

City of Colfax Main Ciruculation Routes 

Scale 
o 1000 2000 feet 

..... J 
1 Inch = 1000 feet 

3-3 

ITEM 7B
6 of 16





3.0 Circulation Element 

The Auburn Street interchange is the northern access point for 1-80 in the City. Access to 1-80 
is available in both north and south bound traffic. This interchange also connects with Canyon 
Way. This area is an important intersection for travelers and trucks using Interstate 80. This 
interchange provides some of the needed services for both trucks and travelers. This exit also 
provides access to the historic downtown. 

Highway 174 

Highway 174 is the next major traffic carrier and produces a mixing of local and through traffic 
at strategic intersections. It enters the city limits in the north and is connected to the historic 
downtown by way of Main Street. Highway 174 then crosses the railroad tracks and terminates 
on Auburn Street. 

Highway 174 is used by local and regional traffic. This roadway provides access to and from the 
communities of Grass Valley and Nevada City, thus allowing access to Highway 20. 

City Roadways and Intersections 

Important City streets are Depot Street, Culver Street and Pleasant Street. These streets connect 
residential areas to the network of collector roadways. Important collector roadways in the 
Colfax area include Auburn, Grass Valley, Church and Main Streets and Rising Sun Road. These 
collector roadways connect to the arterial streets that lead into the City. These include Canyon 
Way, Placer Hills, Tokayana and Ben Taylor. 

Intersections are areas within a circulation system where the flow of traffic is often interrupted. 
Interruptions can occur from any number of sources (stop signs, traffic lights, bicycle and 
pedestrian crossings, etc.). Vehicle conflicts or accidents are more susceptible at intersections. 

Parking 

The parking requirements are established in the City's Zoning Ordinance in Chapter 9-2, Article 
10 "Off-Street Parking Requirements." 

Bicycle Routes 

The City of Colfax currently has Class III routes. The use of bicycles within the City should be 
encouraged and expanded. An example to encourage bicycle use are: new developments that 
require collector or arterial streets should allow for bike route right-of-ways. 

City of Colfax 3-5 (kneral Plan 2020 

ITEM 7B
8 of 16





3.0 Circulation Element 

Level of Service (LOS) Definitions 

A description of the different Level of Service definitions is provided below. 

LOS A: Free flow of individual users that are not interrupted by other users in the traffic 
pattern. Any intersection delays are less than 5 seconds. 

LOS B: Constant flow '\'lith a large fieedom to maneuver, but with some interference from other 
users. Intersection delays are between 5 and 15 secands. 

LOS C: Restricted flow which remains constant, but interference from other users is noticeable. 
intersection delays range from 15 to 25 seconds. 

LOS D: Hlgh-density but stable now. Freedom \0 maneuver is restricted and intersection delays 
range from 25 to 40 seconds. 

LOS E: Traffic now is at or near capacity and freedom to manenver is extremely difficult. 
Intersection delays of 40 to 60 seconds can be expected. 

LOS F: Traffic now approaches a level that exceeds the amount that can he served. Traffic is 
stop-and·gO and queues form. Delays at intersections are greater than 60 seconds. 

Source: Highway Capacity Manual 1985 

Table 3.2lisIs the Level of Service as a ratio of volume to capacity. As the volume and capacity 
get closer to the number 1.00, the LOS gets worse. For example, at a Level of Service of"B" 
the current volume of cars is 61% to 70% of capacity. In other words, the roadway or 
intersection has the capacity to accommodate 30% more cars (volume) before a LOS of"F' is 
reached. 

Table 3·2 
Level of Service in Relation to Volume/Capacity Ratios 

LOS VIC Ratio 

A 0.00-0.60 

B 0.61-0.70 

C 0.71-080 

D 0.81-0.90 

E 0.91-1.00 

F >1.00 

City of Colfax 3-7 General Plan 2020 

ITEM 7B



3.0 CiTtlilatilln Element 

Current Daily Traffic Volumes 
Current Circulation conditions in the City of Colfax are shown on Table 3-3. These condition are 
expressed with peak hour volume and its level of service under those conditions. This does not 
take into account special conditions such as c1ima1ic or emergency conditions. These counts were 
for roadways, not intersections. 

Table 3-3 
Peak Hour! Volume and Level of Service of Local Streets 

Roadway Volume LOS 

1-80 Overpass 586 A 

Highway 174 428 A 

• Auburn Street 748 A 

Grass Valley Street 492 A 

Depot Street 56 A 

Church Street 180 A 

Main Street 124 A 

Rising Sun Road 308 A 

Culver Street 108 A 

Canyon Way 388 A 

Pla.cer Hills 392 A 

Tokayana 72 A 

Ben Taylor 132 A 

! 1-80 Overpass (west) 248 A 
1 Peak Houf1.susually 10 to 12 percent of the Awrage Daily Traffic (ADT) flow. All Peak Hour counts were taken 
Monday through Thursday between 7:00 am. and 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.rn. and 6:00 p.m. 

In a separate study prepared by Spectrum Engineering of Fair Oaks, 5 intersections and road 
segments were also evaluated. This information was provided by Paul Manuel at MBl The 
tratlic counts were taken only during the p.m. peak hour. The results oftms study are shown on 
Table 3·4 and 3-5. All of the intersections studied were stop sign controlled. The MBI study 
shows somewhat different results than the previous study of existing conditions. The main focus 
of the MBI study was on intersections rather than just roadways. 

City of Colfax 3-8 General Plan 2020 

ITEM 7B



3.U Circulation Element 

Table 3·4 
Tr ffi Co So 997 

For The. Year 

Street Segment 1997 1997 
P.M. Peak DaibADT i 

SR 174 Main St. to Auburn St. 
I 

500 5,000 

I SR 174 Auburn SI to 1·80 1,270 1,270 

. Auburn Street SR 174 to 1·80 1,270 12,700 

1·80 Overpass Auburn St to S. Canyon View 855 8.550 

i S. Canyon View Overpass to 1·80 EB RalllPS 730 7300 
Source: Spectrum Engtneer.tng 

Table 3·5 
Level of Senic. Summary of IntersectiOIlS 

Gf :ustinl! on ltions FE" C d" 

No. Intersection E:dstinl! Level of Senic.: 

11. S. Auburn St. At the. j-80 WE ramps LOSe 
i 

i I 2. S. Auburn St at the Overcrossing (north side) LOSD 

3. North Canyon at the Overcrossing (south side) LOSC 

4. North Canyon at the 1·80 EB ramps LOSB 

5. S. Aulrurn St at SiR. 174 LOSE 
Suutce. SpecIrum Engmeenng 

It was concluded by Spectrum Engineering that a signal is warranted at intersection 5 to 
mitigate the unacceptable LOS. Tbis recommendation should be considered as future buildout 
occurs, It is also recommended that a fair share mechanism should be developed to pay for 
deficiencies created by continued development. A recommended City policy is that the 
development project that impacts the circulation system should pay its proportionate shate of 
mitigation measures required, 

Future Conditions 
Future circulation needs and improvements must be based on the impacts ofland use plan for 
the entire plarming area. The land use plan indicates future population and its impact on 
circulation, Changes in density in the downtown residential area will cause an increase in 
traffic on those affected streets and roadways. The anticipated future traffic conditions in 
Colfax includes increased traffic on minor arterials and collectors. These roadways aod their 
intersections will experience degradation generated by increased traffic. In addition to 
changes in density for residential locations the Land Use Element provides for the locating of 
industrial and commercial development on the current transportation corridors. Tbis will help 
in redirection commercial traffic to more appropriate areas of the city. There are two 
intersections and roadways that are currently at an unsatisfactory LOS (see Table 3·5). The 
LOS at these locations will need to be mitigated with the installation of signals or other 

City of Colfax 3·9 General Plan 2020 

ITEM 7B



3.0 Circulation Element 

acceptable traffic management methods to improve these areas to a LOS "C". It is 
understood that as buildout is accomplished, improvements in the circulation system must 
keep pace with this growth. The LOS for existing streets will change as the volume changes. 
These conditions must be monitored as development continues. With each new development 
the current and future circulation must be considered. 

There are valid alternatives to reduce congestion and unsatisfactory LOS. As build 
out is accomplished these methods need to be implemented on a case by case basis. Methods 
that can improve circulation include; signalizing intersections to improve consistent flow, 
restriction of left turns during peak hours or 24 hours per day or install turning lanes wherever 
appropriate to direct and channel traffic. The cost of some of these alternatives is sizable. In 
order to offset the City's cost ofthese measures, new development must provide its fair share 
of the cost for conditions created as buildout continues. Other alternative to improve 
circulation would be to encourage and cooperate with state and federal transportation officials 
for construction of another ramp from State Route 174 to I-SO, as well as elimination of some 
on street parking to increase traffic flow. This would relieve current and future conditions for 
those commuters entering and exiting the City. The City, however, has very little control over 
the transportation decisions for ramps and cannot be sure of securing this alternative. The 
eliminations of parking is not possible in the downtown because of already inadequate parking 
in that area. 

The projected future traffic WS and Peak Hour Volumes are based on computer 
modeling with QRS II software. This network program is used to forecast impacts of urban 

'-.• ' development on roadway networks. This is accomplished by outlining a basic roadway 
network, dividing the City into zones, entering information specifIC about each zone (i.e. 
human activities, income level, occupations, family size, etc.), and current network or 
roadway configurations. Traffic volumes are distributed on the existing network using 
techniques as documented in the National Cooperative Highway Research Program Report 
Number 187 (QRS II) and help forecast traffic levels after there have been changes in urban 
development. 

These projections are affected by current traffic congestion problem intersections and 
roadways. These congestion areas include South Auburn Street at State Route 174 and 
South Auburn Street at the north side Overcrossing. It may be necessary to postpone 
approval of development proposals that result in degradation ofWS nntil improvements are 
accomplished. 

Air quality problems resulting from increased traffic circulation will require the 
implementation of mitigation measurer consistent with the Placer County Air Pollution 
Control District's 1991 Air Quality Attainment Plan (or updated version). Air quality is 
addressed more in the Natural Environment Element. 

City of Colfax 3-10 General Plan 2020 

ITEM 7B
13 of 16





3.0 Circulation Element 

• Potential off·ramp congestion with build out of vacant land along Auburn and 
Canyon Way may be a problem. 

• A need to encourage the development of community gateways. 

3.4 Findings 

The following findings address the above issues and concerns: 

• The planning of future roadways need to meet all acceptable standards to 
ensure a safe and efficient circulation network. 

• Inadequate pedestrian and bicycle routes, including walkways, sidewalks and 
pedestrian crossings need to be changed and improved 

• Union Pacific and Southern Pacific Railroads have merged creating potential 
for more rail traffic through the City. 

• Highway 174 has become a major commute route for morning traffic between 
Grass Valley to Interstate 80. 

3.5 Circulation Goals, Policies, and Implementation Measures 

Goal 3.5.1 Create a problem free and safe transportation system in the Colfax 
Planning Area. 

Policy 3.5.1.1 Maximize the efficient use of existing transportation facilities. 

Policy 3.5.1.2 Maintain a level "c" service standard for City intersections and roadways. 

Policy 3.5.1.3 Take a pro.active position in regional transportation issues that involve the 
Colfax area. 

Policy 3.5.1.4 Traffic impacts must be considered in land use decisions and vice versa. 

Implementation Measures 
3.5.1A Monitor standards and requirements for future development of residential and 

commercial land, noting and prioritizing needed improvements such as streets, 
wastewater distribution I treatment system and storm drainage system. These 
needed improvements will be included in the City's Capital Improvement 
Program" 

3.S.1B Land uses that generate a high incidence of auto traffic, such as drive-ins, 
convenience stores, fast·food outlets, shopping centers, and large subdivisions, 

City of Colfax 3· 12 General Plan 2020 

ITEM 7B



Goal 3.5.2 

3.0 Cil'Clllation Element 

shall be required to submit a site-specific traffic impact report prior to 
construction or expansion of such facilities. 

Encourage alternative forms of transportation. 

Policy 3.S.2.1 Allow for alternative forms of transportation by providing necessary facilities, 
such as bicycle racks, pedestrian walkways and connections, as well as ride 
share parking. 

Policy 3.S.2.2 Place priority on walking and bicycle trails within the Colfax Planning Area. 

Implementation Measure 

3.S.2A Create an integrated network of pedestrian connections throughout the 
planning area. 

3.5.2B Use transportation systems management techniques to lower vehicle miles 
traveled and to decrease air pollution emissions. 

3.S.2C Utilize the strategies recommended in the Tral1!fPartatian-RelatedLand Use 
Strate'/ies ta Mi/limize Motor Vehicle Emissions: An Indirect Source Research 
Study Final Report (19951 Chgpter 1. This report was prepared for the 
California Air Resources Board and the California Environmental Protection 
Agency. These recommendations, when applicable, will be used to mitigate 
impacts caused by new development throughout tile City. These strategies 
include: 

city of Colfax 

Provide Pedestrian Facilities 
Increase Density Near Transit Corridors 
Increase Density Near Transit Stations 
Encourage :Mixed-Use Development 
Encourage InfiII and Densification 
Develop Concentrated Activity Centers 
Strengthen Downtowns 
Develop Interconnected Street Network 
Provide Strategic Parking Facilities 

3-13 General Pian 2020 

ITEM 7B
16 of 16



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE September 23, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: September 16, 2015 
SUBJECT: Mobile311 GIS Work Order and Asset Management System 

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $10,500 FROM FUND:  560 / 100  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 39-2015 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
contract with Mobile311 for a GIS Work Order and Asset Management System for a twenty-one month 
term. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Colfax has historically maintained customer requests and asset management through a rudimentary office 

system. The current methodology of processing customer requests and asset management has deficiencies in 

tracking the tasks after completion which prevent the City from actively monitoring current and past information. An 

updated, comprehensive system would create a better context for decision-making, tracking, and prioritization.  
 

SUMMARY: 
City staff has evaluated several hosted work order and asset management systems and determined Mobile311 as the 
best price option for the City’s needs. The goal is to proactively manage customer requests with a closed-loop system 
designed to improve operational efficiency of execution and tracking of resources used on a day to day basis.  
 

The City will receive the following services from Mobile311: 
 

 Mobile GIS access 

 Unlimited access and technical support  

 Hosted GIS work order and asset management system 

 Scheduled equipment and infrastructure maintenance   
 

In addition, Mobile311 will provide the necessary tracking tools to manage the City’s infrastructure and equipment. 
Ultimately, Mobile311 will provide the essential data collection required for effective decision-making, tracking, and 
prioritization of infrastructure improvements. 
 

The costs include a one-time start-up fee of $1,050 and a 9-month prorated fee of $4,050 for fiscal year 2015/16. The 
fiscal year costs in 2016/17 (12-months) will be $5,400 for the annual service. The City is receiving a 60 day trial 
period of the product. In addition, the lump sum payments are due at the end of June in each fiscal year. 
 

CONCLUSION: 
Staff recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Mobile311 GIS Work 
Order and Asset Management System for a twenty-one month term. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
a. Resolution 39-2015 

b. Mobile311 Quote  

ITEM 7C
1 of 4





ITEM 7C



ITEM 7C


	00A 150923 Agenda
	03A  Winterfest Presentation
	flyer.
	Resolution 38-2015 Fireworks at Winterfest

	04A150909 Minutes
	04B Cash Summary Report August
	2016-02 Staff Report Cash Summary Aug 2015
	Data for Cash Summary

	07A Skatepark Update
	07B Updated on Ciruclation GP Committee
	2015-09-23 Update on Mitigation Program & General Plan Circ Element
	03_Circulation

	07C Mobile311
	Mobile 311 Staff Report 9 23 2015
	Resolution 39-2015 Mobile311 Contract
	Mobile 311 Quote




